

TOWN OF BLOWING ROCK 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
MINUTES
SEPTEMBER 4TH, 2025
5:30 p.m.

The Blowing Rock Board of Adjustment met on Thursday, September 4th, 2025 at 5:30pm on Town Hall. Members present were Chairman EB Springs, Stephen Schiller, Jerry Starnes, Sarah Murphy and Brandon Walker. Staff members present were Zoning Officer Brian Johnson and Support Specialist Taylor Miller. 
Chairman Springs called the meeting to order at 5:29 p.m.
Taylor Miller swore in EB Springs for his new term. 
Chairman Springs made a motion to elect a new Chairman and Vice Chairman seconded by Brandon Walker. All members in favor. 
Stephen Schiller made a motion to nominate EB Springs, seconded by Brandon Walker. All members in favor. 
Chairman Springs made a motion to close the nomination process for Chairman, seconded by Stephen Schiller. All members in favor. 
Chairman Springs made a motion to elect a new Vice Chairman, seconded by Brandon Walker and Sarah Murphy. All members in favor. 
Chairman Springs said he nominated Stephen Schiller for Vice Chairman. Jerry Starnes made a motion to close the nomination process for Vice Chairman, seconded by EB Springs. Stephen Schiller was voted Vice Chairman by the board. 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Springs made a motion to approve the January 23rd, 2025 minutes, seconded by Brandon Walker. All members in favor. 
1. Variance #2025 – 01 Penn Branin and Irwin Morrison 
Chairman Springs confirmed that Irwin Morrison was present at the meeting and asked if she had retained Mrs. Chelsea Garrett to help her with this case. Irwin Morrison said she was present and that Mrs. Garrett would be helping with the case. 
Chairman Springs stated he would direct all questions to Mrs. Garrett if that was okay with her. Mrs. Garrett agreed. 
Chairman Springs asked if there was any objection to Taylor Miller keeping the minutes for the meeting. No objection. 
Chairman Springs stated that this hearing is a quasi-judicial hearing. It is conducted according to the rules and laws pertaining to quasi-judicial hearings. It will have all the essential elements of a fair trial. Parties will have the opportunity to give evidence, cross-examine witnesses, inspect documents and testimonies shall be under oath. The board’s findings will be based on substantial, material, and competent evidence.
Chairman Springs stated that board members must disclose any information regarding conflict of interest, financial interest or any relation to any parties of this case. Any board members need to disclose if there has been any ex parte communication with anyone about this case. There weren’t any members who needed to disclose any information on those topics. 
Chairman Springs asked if anyone had any bias towards this case. There weren’t any members who were biased towards the case. 
Chairman Springs stated that a member may not have the fixed opinion that all variance cases should not be granted. He asked if any board members feel like they have a fixed opinion that no variances should ever be granted. No members felt that way. 
Chairman Springs stated that the board members are allowed to visit the site of the property in question. He asked if any board members had been by the property. Jerry Starnes, Brandon Walker and Sarah Murphy stated they had been by the property. Stephen Schiller and EB Springs did not go by the property. 
Chairman Springs asked if anyone considered themselves a party to this case. No one answered. 
Taylor Miller swore in Irwin Morrison, Susan Dudley, Chelsea Garrett and Brian Johnson. 
Chairman Springs asked if everyone had received copies of the staff report. Everyone stated they received one. 
Brian Johnson presented the staff report. 
Chelsea Garrett on behalf of Penn Branin and Erwin Morrison is requesting a setback variance from Land Use Ordinance Section 16-12.4 and the 12-foot side setback along the Western property line for construction of an addition. The property is located 1884 Main Street and is further identified by Watauga County PIN 2807-94-7118-000 and contains 0.397 acres. The property is zoned R-15, Single-Family.
Attorney Chelsea Garrett on behalf of Penn Branin and Erwin Morrison is requesting a 10.7 foot setback variance from the applicable 12-foot side setback for the construction of an addition. The addition will be 7 feet x 15 feet on the North of the existing house.
The current building structure at the front West corner is located 4.1 feet from the property line. This side of the house is non-conforming as it currently encroaches into the 12-foot side setback.
Mr. Johnson showed multiple pictures and surveys of the property to show where the addition will go on the property and how it will encroach into the side setback. 
Chairman Springs asked how many houses share the driveway. Mr. Johnson said two. 
Chairman Springs asked if their variance request would put the house 1.3 feet from the property line. Mr. Johnson said yes. 
Mr. Jerry Starnes asked if eaves and guttering were included in the measurements. Mr. Johnson said the eaves are included but not the gutters. 
Chairman Springs asked about the width of the property – the front property line measures 49.89 feet and the rear property line measures 73.43 feet. 
Chairman Springs asked which property all the rhododendron bushes fall on. Mr. Johnson said they are on both properties. 
Chairman Springs asked for the entire staff report to be entered into the record. No objections from anyone. 
Chairman Springs asked if the required notices had been sent out to properties. Mr. Johnson said yes, public notice was sent to 13 properties. 
Chairman Springs asked if we were contacted by any of the 13 properties. 
Chairman Springs asked if anyone from the public contacted him. Mr. Johnson said there were two phone calls. 
Chairman Springs asked if the required sign had been put up. Mr. Johnson said yes. 
Chelsea Garrett, an attorney with Deal & Moseley Law Firm, is working with the applicant. She stated Susan Dudley, designer of the addition for the property, is there along with the applicant. 
Mrs. Garrett stated the survey provided by Survey Pros shows the existing building corner 4.1 feet from the property line and does not include the eaves, it is the corner of the foundation of the house. She wanted to explain why the distance on the survey was different from the distance requested for the variance – it’s because the measurement on the survey did not include the eaves on the current building. 
The foundation of the proposed addition will be 2.9 feet from the property line. That number does not account for the measurement of the eaves. The distance from the eave to the property line will be 1.3 feet. 
There is a neighbor of the property owner who is going to speak about the property on the phone. Mr. Dillon is the neighbor who provided the letter to the board in support of the variance request by the applicant. 
Mrs. Garrett added a survey to the record as Exhibit 7. 
Chairman Springs asked who owns the property according to the deed. The owner is listed as Blowing Rock I and Blowing Rock II, LLC.
Chairman Springs asked whose property all the rhododendrons are on. Mrs. Garrett said it’s a combination; they are on the applicant’s property as well as Mr. Dillons property, the neighbor. It was clarified that most of the trunk of the rhododendrons are on Mr. Dillons property. 
Mrs. Garrett shared that the existing encroachment into the setback of the property is 9.25 feet, including the eaves. The proposed addition will be 10.6 feet into the setback. The request in the staff report adds a couple inches of cushion just in case the measurements vary or different a little bit once construction starts. 
We made phone contact with the neighbor, Mr. Dan Dillon. There is a copy of Mr. Dillons letter in the staff report for review from the board. Daniel Reid Dillon confirmed he is the neighbor directly west of the property requesting the variance. Taylor Miller swore in Mr. Dillon for his testimony. 
Mrs. Garrett asked Mr. Dillon to testify to the letter he provided. Mrs. Garrett asked if the applicants spoke to Mr. Dillon and met with him about the changes they plan to make to their property. Mr. Dillon confirmed that he had spoken to the applicant about their plans. 
Mrs. Garrett asked if Mr. Dillon had any objections to the addition the applicants are proposing. Mr. Dillon said no. 
Chairman Springs confirmed Mr. Dillons full name and address. He asked how long Mr. Dillon has lived in his home on Main Street. Mr. Dillon said they have just bought the home in February and have not moved in yet. The applicants are the only neighbors Mr. Dillon has met. 
Chairman Springs stated that the whole footprint of the house is very narrow. Mr. Dillon said he did not feel that the house was overwhelmingly narrow. 
Mr. Dillon’s testimony ended and he hung up the phone. 
Jerry Starnes asked about the joint driveway and who owns what. Ms. Morrison stated it is a 50/50 split in ownership. 
Chairman Springs stated the lot seems awfully narrow. Mrs. Garrett agreed. The home originally served as a tea house for the Stringfellow family and then was turned into a personal residence later. Mrs. Garrett also stated that the neighboring properties do not share the same issue of such a narrow lot, the lots surrounding it are much bigger. 
Chairman Springs asked if there is a series of tiny lots up and down Main Street. Mrs. Garrett stated she did not believe so. 
Ms. Morrison stated this lot/home used to be apart of a much bigger lot under the name Weedon. There were multiple houses on the lot and then this little house/lot were sold back at the turn of the century and separated from the bigger lot. 
Chairman Springs asked if this is the smallest lot. Ms. Morrison said yes. 
Chairman Springs said that this lot is so narrow that it makes it difficult to do anything with the lot. 
Mrs. Garrett mentioned that adding on to the home would result in encroaching in the setbacks no matter where you tried to add on except for the back but the topography would limit an addition on the back of the home. 
Chairman Springs asked if the applicant’s proposal would impair emergency vehicles in any way. Mr. Johnson said no. 
Chairman Springs asked if the applicant’s proposal would create a fire hazard. Mr. Johnson said no. 
Chairman Springs asked if the applicant’s proposal would block or impede visibility of any street or highway. Mr. Johnson said no. 
Chairman Springs asked if the applicant’s proposal would be contrary to public safety in any way. Mr. Johnson said no. 
Chairman Springs stated he would leave the evidentiary hearing open during the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law. 

FINDINGS OF FACT
1. The applicants are Penn Branin and Erwin Morrison, owners of the legal entities which own the property in question.
2. The owners of the property in question are entities known as Blowing Rock I and Blowing Rock II.
3. The address of the property in question is 1884 Main Street, Blowing Rock, N.C.  The existing building on the property was built around 1900. The property is located primarily in Watauga County, but a portion is in Caldwell County. The Watauga County PIN number is 
2807-94-7118-000.
4. The existing house is nonconforming to the required zoning setback requirements; it intrudes 9.25 feet into the required 12-foot side setback.  
	The existing house was at one time used as a "tea house."
5. The property in question is zoned R-15.  
6. The applicant wants to do the following, which would violate zoning regulations, and which would require a variance:
Applicant wants to build an addition to the existing house which would intrude into the western side setback requirement of 12 feet. The addition would be 1.3 feet from the property line, so the violation of the zoning-required twelve (12) foot setback would be 10.7 feet.  
APPLICANT IS SEEKING A 10.7 FOOT VARIANCE OF THE ZONING-REQUIRED TWELVE (12) FOOT WEST SIDE SETBACK TO BUILD THE ADDITION.	
7. The Blowing Rock zoning ordinance section which is at issue here and which stands in the Applicant's way is section 16-12.4, and put into 	words, the ordinance requires a 12 foot side setback from the side property line in zoning district R-15 in which no building or construction is to be done.
8. There are no other parties with standing to come into this case.
9. The applicant did provide drawings or sketches and plans and pictures illustrating what the applicants want to do.  They are included in the Staff Report in the record.
10. The Town of Blowing Rock has provided and given all necessary legal notices of this case and this hearing.
There were proper notices given to all property owners with property abutting the parcel of land that is at issue here, and proper notice was given to all persons entitled to receive notice.  
The Zoning Enforcement Officer, Brian Johnson, sent notices of this hearing to 13 property owners. None of those 13 responded to the Zoning Enforcement Officer. Two members of the public did respond but did not appear or testify in this hearing. One neighboring property owner, Daniel Reed Dillon, did testify in the hearing.

11. The applicant did receive a copy of the Zoning Enforcement Officer's Staff Report prior to the meeting.
12. There was one other witness in this hearing in addition to the Zoning Enforcement Officer and the applicants and the applicants' attorney, Chelsea Bell Garrett. That other witness was:
Daniel Reed Dillon, whose address is 1882 Main Street, Blowing Rock, N. C. He is the next door neighbor to the property in question and his property abuts the applicants' property in the location where the applicants' desired addition would be built.  
Mr. Dillon testified under oath by way of telephone that he had no objections of any kind to the applicants' proposed addition.
13. There is an existing rhododendron plant screen between applicants' property and the property of neighbor Daniel Reed Dillon. That screen is primarily on Dillon's property.
14. What the applicant is proposing would not impair emergency vehicles such as fire trucks and ambulances.
15. What the applicant is proposing would not create a fire hazard.
16. What the applicant is proposing would not block or impede visibility on any street or highway.
17. What the applicant is proposing would not be contrary to public health and/or safety.
18. Unique features of this property include:
The property lot is very narrow, measuring 49.89 feet at one end and 73.43 feet at the other end. The lot is much more narrow than others in the neighborhood.  
The narrowness of the lot in question makes any reasonable scale of construction very difficult to the point of being impossible without a variance.
The Board of Adjustment did adopt the above listed facts by a unanimous vote.
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
1. Based upon the evidence presented and the facts shown above, the Board of Adjustment finds substantial, material and competent evidence exists to conclude that in this case unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the regulation.
That hardship comes from the very narrowness of the lot in question, more narrow than neighboring lots.
The Board's vote on this factor was unanimous.
2. Based upon the evidence presented and the facts shown above, the Board of Adjustment finds substantial, material, and competent evidence exists to conclude that in this case the hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property.
	The peculiar conditions are the extreme narrowness of the lot in question.
	The Board's vote on this factor was unanimous.
3. Based upon the evidence presented and the facts shown above, the Board of Adjustment finds substantial, material, and competent evidence exists to conclude that in this case the hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicants or the property owner.
The applicants and property owners had nothing whatsoever to do with the subdivision and creation of the lot and its narrowness.
The Board's vote on this factor was unanimous.
4. Based upon the evidence presented and the facts shown above, the Board of Adjustment finds substantial, material, and competent evidence exists to conclude that in this case the requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the regulation, such that public safety is secured and substantial justice is achieved. 
	The Board's vote on this factor was unanimous.
5. The Board of Adjustment does grant the applicants a variance of 10.7 feet into the western side setback, as described in Fact #6 above.
	The Board's vote to grant the applicants the variance was unanimous.
This decision is effective upon filing with the Clerk.
The Board of Adjustment did adopt the above listed Conclusions of Law by unanimous vote. 
Chairman Springs asked all those in favor of closing the evidentiary hearing. All members in favor. 
Chairman Springs made a motion to adopt the Conclusions of Law, seconded by Stephen Schiller. All members in favor. 
Chairman Springs made a motion to close the meeting, seconded by Stephen Schiller. All members in favor. 
Meeting adjourned at 7:02 p.m. 

_______________________________________         _________________________________________
Chairman Springs 					Support Specialist, Taylor Miller 




